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The Clubhouse of the Woman's Club of Topeka at the corner of Ninth street 
and Topeka avenue, is a three story brick building with cut stone trim. Completec 
in 1925, it can only be classified as 1920's eclecticism at its finest. The 
structure is 90 feet deep and 100 feet wide, and is located just one half 
block west of the State Capitol.

The exterior walls of the building are composed of brown mat-faced brick, 
and cut grey stone was employed for the trim. A simple stone frieze with a 
diamond-and-circle motif ornaments the top of the second story. There are 
also a stone watertable, a stone belt course under the second story windows, 
and stone keystones. The doors and windows on all facades are made of wood and 
are painted white. The roof to the rear of the third story is an overhanging 
hip roof with green clay ti-le. The front part of the third story has a glass- 
enclosed pergola between two monumental masonry piers, which lets out onto 
a roof terrace.

The main entrance faces south onto Ninth Street. Another major entrance 
leading to the auditorium and a secondary set of steps faces west onto Topeka 
avenue. The basement can be entered from the rear. There are loading doors 
on the east next to an alley, and a single door in the northeast corner 
of the building.

The main entranceway on the south is extremely monumental. It is emphasized 
by a two-story projecting and battered brick bay. A stone molding, incised 
with a geometric design, frames the centrally-located doorway and second 
story windows, thus uniting the two floors. A semielHptical arch supported 
by two brackets crowns the doorway. The double doorway is topped by a transom, 
and the entire group is finished with a molded stone surround. Beneath the 
bank of three second story windows is a stone carved with the words "Woman's 
Club." The entrance on the west facade conststs of three sets of paired doors. 
These are framed by a stone surround, at the two upper corners of which are 
lion's heads. The stone surround is carved with a pattern of X's.

A metal marquee painted white and suspended by eyebolts shelters the 
southeast entrance which provides access from the parking spaces on the alley. 
Above the marquee is a round-arched stained glass window with a figurative 
design. Inside, this window illuminates a monumental staircase. Seven other 
round-arched stained glass windows having abstract designs along with symbolic 
panels are located at the auditorium level on the north side. Each unit 
consists of three narrow rectangular panels surmounted by an arched segment. 
Circular, symbolic panels are centered in each arched segment.

Inside, the first floor remains relatively unchanged from the time of 
its construction. All woodwork throughout the building is of white oak. 
On the first floor even the floor planks are white oak. The stairhall 
is finished with wainscoting and a molded cornice. The parlor has a fireplace, 
a ceiling divided Into three coved panels by two large non-structural beams, 
and stained glass lights over the two doors which open onto the main stair hall.
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The wide, elaborately finished stair at the east end of the building 
leads from the first to the second floors. A handrail divides the stairway 
up to the first landing where the stair splits Into two ascending sections. 
The staircase 1s crowned at the second floor level by a curved balustrade 
joining the separate sections.

The rooms on the second floor were, until recently, used as a dining 
hall, kitchen, meeting rooms, and library. The large room on the third floor 
was a ball room with a spring dance floor. The south side of the third 
floor 1s a roof terrace.

ALTERATIONS

The entire building has recently been adapted for use as office space. 
Most work that has been done 1s reversible, the original materials having 
been covered up where necessary, rather than removed. The major spaces on 
all floors have retained their original configurations.

The first floor has undergone the fewest changes. The floor level 
in the auditorium has been raised to two Inches above the former stage level. 
A drop celling has been installed, but cuts off short of the stained glass 
windows on the north wall so that they can be seen. Drop ceilings have been 
installed throughout the second floor.

On the third floor, the balconies and the spring floor in the ball 
room have been retained, but are covered. The spring floor has been blocked 
for Its intended use as offices, but these can be easily removed should someone 
wish to use 1t again as a dance floor.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Clubhouse of the Woman's Club of Topeka designed by Topeka architect 
Frank C. Squires, is a*significant example of the "free eclectic" architectural 
style popular in the 1920's. It is*associated with an important local organization 
which has been "first to give to schools, hospitals, traveling libraries', civic 
and charitable organizations." In the same year that the building was being constructed, 
the club was praised as a great asset to the state and city, and was enjoying a 
period of great prosperity.

In 1897 a federation of the woman's clubs of Topeka and vicinity was organized. 
The group chose a more formal title, the Topeka Federation of Women, in 1912. The 
organization became the Woman's Club of Topeka in 1916. The club promoted other 
forms of musical education and entertainment, The club was praised for donations 
of pictures and statuary to local schools as well as donation of books and magazines 
to many other institutions. After the famous 1903 flood the group raised money 
to aid in the relief of the disaster yictimss..The Woman's Club was also instrumental 
in the effort to introduce manual training and domestic science into the curriculum 
of the public schools. During World War I, the club members devoted most of their 
attention to "war work," that is, activities benefiting servicemen and gathering 
material for the war effort. A newspaper report in 1924, which described the club's 
achievements said, "the Woman's Club is one of Topeka's assets as a dependable 
organization, alive to the city'-s best interest and ready to help in any progressive 
work." After the war, interest in constructing a permanent home was strong. A 
preliminary plan designed by Frank C. Squires, husband of the chairman of the 
fundraising committee, was presented to Mrs. W. A. McCarter, president of the club, 
in February. The club bought four lots on the northeast corner of Ninth and Topeka 
in July for $9,000. During the next year the club bought two more lots for $4,000. 
Raising the money to actually build, however, required more organization and cooperation.

A perspective drawing of the future Woman's Clubhouse was published in the 
Topeka Capital December 25, 1921. Ground was not broken for the building until 
October 1, 1923. After completion of the foundation, work ceased for the 
winter. The project began with the laying of the cornerstone April 26, 1924. 
The building was formally opened one year later in the spring of 1925.
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The architect, Frank C. Squires, was an active Topeka designer. In his early 
career, he had trained with three firms, including that of the famous 
early Kansas architect J. G.Haskell. Squires entered a partnership with another 
notable Kansas designer, J. C. Holland, in 1898. By the 1920's however, 
Squires had developed his own practice.

Squires 1 own description of the clubhouse is indicative of the "free 
eclectic" and regional orientation of much architectural design of this 
period: "The clubhouse is 'free and easy 1 in type of architecture and 
would be called midwestern in style, if any classification were to be applied 
to it at all." The architect's enthusiasm was sweeping; he called it one of 
the finest structures of its kind in the United States and probably the finest 
in any city from Chicago to the Pacific Coast.

When it was finally completed, the clubhouse cost $200,000. J. M. Leeper 
was the contractor; George Rinner his assistant. Irvin Pribble installed the 
plumbing and Jordan Electric Company the wiring.

In 1925 the Woman's Club had over 400 members and included representatives 
from every important club in the city. The Topeka Capital predicted that the 
clubhouse "may be used as a center for social, artistic, and civic organizations 
of the town and will always be a source of civic pride." Five years later, the 
clubhouse provided meeting rooms for the Topeka Art Guild, the Daughters of 
the American Revolution, the Friends of Art, the Business and Professional 
Woman's Club, art classes and a dancing club. Besides these specific uses, 
the clubhouse was also intended to serve as a "hospitable center for the 
club women of Topeka and Kansas."

In. 1926 the Union Pacific Magazine reported, "It was not until after the 
building was completed and in use that the club found out, as it is believed, 
that it is the largest club house of its kind west of the Mississippi River." 
Over the years the Woman's Club has experienced steadily declining membership. 
They recently sold the building and it is now ready for use as offices.

THIS STATEMENT REFLECTS CURRENT KNOWLEDGE AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.
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